UNITED
NATIONS C RC

Convention on the S ERAL
Rights of the Child CRGI & SR 376
26 May 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Fi fteenth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 376t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 22 May 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: M ss MASON
CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Initial report of Cuba (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97-16720 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (agenda item 6) (continued)

Initial report of Cuba (continued) (CRC/ C/ 8/ Add.30; CRC/C/ Q CUB.1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the Cuban del egation resunmed its
place at the Committee table.

2. M. KOOSOV asked whet her the special schools, of which there were
some 13 in Cuba, canme under the authority of the country's Mnistry of the
Interior or of the Mnistry of Education. He would also |ike to know whet her
officials working with or on behalf of children were given training in
children's rights and, if so, how was the training system organi zed?

3. Ms. KARP rem nded the Cuban del egation that it had not yet responded to
the Conmittee's request for clarification of Cuba's declaration relating to
article 1 of the Convention, (CRC/C/ 2/Rev.6) that majority was not attained at
18 years of age for purposes of the full exercise of civic rights in Cuba.

4, When the Committee expressed concern about the disparity between boys
and girls in ternms of the age of marriage, it was referring not just to

di scrimnation as such but to the risks associated with early marriage for
girls: possible physical and nental damage or danage to heal th; di sadvantages
suffered by children born to immature nothers; narrowing of girls' prospects
for further study and sel f-devel opnment. Although she realized that early
marri ages were often the preferred solution to the problem of early pregnancy,
she wondered whether it was a sound policy to address one problem by creating
anot her .

5. Children were too young at the age of 12 years to choose or to have
their parents choose for them between further study and work in the inform
sector. Under adverse econom c circunmstances such as those prevailing in
Cuba, she feared that the second alternative would be favoured. The
statistics furnished, which covered the period up to 1993/1994, showed a
decline in enrolnment at the secondary and higher |evels of education and a
reduction in the nunber of scholarships. Mreover no indication had been
given of the drop-out ratio. She asked for nore recent and nore conprehensive
statistics and suggested that Cuba should raise the age of compul sory
education in the best interests of children

6. The Cuban Fami|ly Code referred to the best interests of the child. How
was the terminterpreted by the courts and the adm nistrative authorities when
a conflict arose between the interests of children and those of their parents

or of other children, or anbng a child's different interests?

7. She asked whet her corporal punishnment was prohibited in schools and
other institutions or as a penalty in the judicial systemand whether it was
preval ent in the hone. WAs any action being taken to eradicate corpora

puni shment ?

8. Torture was prohibited by the Cuban Constitution. Wat procedure
exi sted to consider conplaints of torture involving children? Had a specia



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 3

body been established for the purpose which was independent of the public
authorities? Was there any provision for conpensation and rehabilitation of
victims? In particular, she wi shed to know whet her there had been conpl aints
of ill-treatnment of children by the police or other authorities.

9. In the absence of a legally established age of sexual consent in Cuba,
she understood that rape was defined solely in terms of the consent or
otherwise of the victim In many other countries, it was an offence to have
sexual intercourse with a girl or boy under a certain age even where consent
was obtai ned, on the ground that it was not informed consent. She recomrended
the inclusion of such an offence in Cuba's Crimnal Code.

10. In its Agenda for Action, the Wirld Congress agai nst Commercial Sexua
Expl oitation of Children, held in Stockhol min 1996, had encouraged countries
to devel op | egislation that woul d establish the crimnal responsibility of
customers of child prostitution in addition to that of service providers. It
had further recommended that both girls and boys should be protected up to the
age of 18 years.

11. According to the delegation, children's conplaints were addressed to the
Prosecutor-General or the Mnistry of Justice. In the Comrittee's view, the
conpl ai nts machi nery shoul d be independent of the authorities against whom a
conpl aint was being filed and it should be accessible to children confined,
for exanple, in welfare institutions or institutions of juvenile justice. She
proposed that a system of redress along those |ines should be established in
Cuba.

12. Cuba had a highly devel oped wel fare and educati on system She feared,
however, that in a welfare-oriented society the best interests of the child
m ght be equated with the goals of welfare theories. Wo decided, for
exanple, to renmove children fromtheir home? Wre the child s w shes taken
fully into consideration? Sone countries had introduced the institution of
the guardian ad litem who represented children vis-a-vis the authorities,
expressing their wi shes and views. She suggested that Cuba should consider
ways of taking the child' s interests into consideration fromhis or her own
per specti ve.

13. VWhat kind of treatment could children who were HI V-positive expect in
Cuban society? Could they continue their normal schooling or were they
separated from other children and hence stigmatized?

14. She asked for further information regarding the Cuban Plan of Action
concerning accidents, in particular whether it included an investigation into
the safety of playgrounds.

15. Wth regard to juvenile justice, she understood that 16 years was the
age of crimnal responsibility. When children under the age of 16 were
conmitted to welfare or special education institutions on suspicion of having
conmitted an of fence, how were their rights safeguarded in the absence of an

i nvestigation to establish their guilt? 1In the case of young people over the
age of 16 years, the Comm ttee had not received di saggregated data regarding

t he nunber of children involved in crimnal proceedings, the offences with

whi ch they had been charged, the nunber of custodial sentences handed down and



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 4

the ratio of such sentences to alternative fornms of punishment. She suggested
that Cuba should include such data in its next report. She also recomended
t hat young peopl e under the age of 18 should be tried in juvenile courts.

16. The Cuban | egi sl ation prohibiting night work by children under the age
of 18 years between 10 p.m and 6 a.m was not in conformty with Convention
No. 79 of the International Labour Organization (ILO concerning the
Restriction of Night Wrk of Children, which provided for a period of rest of
at least 12 consecutive hours. The Cuban Governnment had undertaken to renedy
the matter by anmending the relevant legislation. Had it already done so?

17. Ms. FLOREZ PRIDA (Cuba) said that article 1 of the Convention defined
the child as every human being bel ow the age of 18 years unless majority was
attained earlier under the |law applicable to the child. Cuba had made its
declaration in relation to that article because mpjority was attained earlier
under its legislation for certain purposes, including nmarriage, concluding
work contracts and voting in elections. The Famly Code set the m ni mum age
for marriage at 14 years for girls and 16 years for boys, since the
traditional viewin Cuba was that girls reached marri ageabl e age sooner than
boys. It could be argued for that reason that boys had been discrim nated
against rather than girls. However, the |egislation was currently being
amended to ensure gender equality.

18. M. KOOSOV, referring to paragraph 29 of the report (CRC/ C/ 8/ Add. 30),
said that the Convention itself provided for different ages for certain acts,
or what was known as “partial |egal capacity”. He therefore saw no need for
Cuba's declaration relating to article 1.

19. Ms. SARDENBERG noted that the Vienna Declaration and Programme of
Action adopted by the World Conference on Human Ri ghts had encouraged States
to review any reservations to international human rights instruments with a
view to their withdrawal. As there seened to be no practical reason for
Cuba's declaration on article 1, she reconmended that the Cuban Governnent
shoul d consi der withdrawi ng the declaration as an inportant political gesture.

20. She disagreed with the view that girls enjoyed any advantage through
being allowed to nmarry at the age of 14 years. On the contrary, they were
entering the adult world too soon and were being deprived of the safeguards
accorded to children. Legislation should evolve in Iine with social change
and Cuba would do well to re-exanine the whole structure of ages for various
activities in the light of the Convention and the new noral code it had

est abl i shed.

21. M. FULCI said that the Committee was entering a highly sensitive
political area and was in danger of acting ulta vires. |Its main purpose was
to see that the Convention was inplenmented and, while he was not in favour of
conditional ratification, that was a right of States parties which was
general |y recogni zed.

22. The CHAI RPERSON said that, in her view, it was the Conmittee's duty to
bring to the attention of any reporting State party the recomendati ons of the
Vi enna Decl arati on of 1993 concerning reservati ons and decl arati ons.




CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 5

23. Ms. FLOREZ PRIDA (Cuba) said that education in her country was
compul sory up to the age of 12 years. Cuba had a population of 11 mllion
and there were 2,200,000 students at all levels, in nmore than 10, 000
educational institutions. She would provide the Comrittee with education
statistics for 1996 and 1997, broken down according to subjects and

geogr aphi cal areas.

24. No children were held in prison in Cuba. 1In certain cases children were
pl aced in specialized educational institutions because they had conmtted
non-crim nal offences. Children were not subjected to torture.

25. Ms. BERETERVI DE (Cuba) said that Cuba's specialized educationa

i nstitutions functioned under the authority of the Mnistry of Education; they
did not cone under the Mnistry of the Interior. As indicated in paragraph 72
of the report (CRC/ C/8/Add.30), there were at present 35 special

school s, 13 of them being of a new type. As for the kind of teachers who

wor ked in special education and how they were trained, she said that there
were diagnostic and orientation centres part of whose function was to train
such teachers but whose nmain goal was to detect as quickly as possible in the
regul ar school s whether an individual child had need of special schooling.

All teachers were entitled to a one-year sabbatical during which they upgraded
their skills or undertook training in new ones; many opted to train in the

di agnostic and orientation centres, devel oping systenms for the special schools
with the assistance of teans of psychol ogists, educationists and | ega

experts.

26. Wth reference to the sexual exploitation of children, she said that
prostitution as such was not considered an offence in Cuba, but anyone who
benefited fromit was considered to be an offender and sanctions were inposed.
Anyone, apart fromthe prostitute, found guilty of involvenent in child
prostitution or of inciting mnors to engage in prostitution was puni shed
severely. Cuba's attitude to prostitution itself was to help the person
concerned and give himor her - whether child or adult - special treatnent. A
social welfare officer specializing in that area took charge of their care,

but also examined the fam |y situation and other factors that m ght have
caused the individual to engage in prostitution in the first place.

27. Ms. ALINO (Cuba) said that in Cuba there was no discrimnation agai nst
children who were found to be H'V positive; their parents were informed and
given help in dealing with the problem Children show ng synptons were given
medi cal treatnent.

28. The problem of accidents in recreational areas was dealt with by a

nati onal health council and a national accident prevention comr ssion, but
basi c protection was provided by the famly doctor. Considerable efforts were
bei ng made to inprove security in the home and at school by identifying
potential hazards for children and dealing with them either by taking safety
measures or by limting access. Comunities, schools and homes were obliged
to declare any accident risks and try to raise their levels of safety.

29. Ms. FLOREZ PRI DA (Cuba) said that corporal punishment in schools did not
exi st, was prohibited and had never been authorized. Schools had parents




CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 6

associ ations which met on a regular basis to discuss problens that arose with
the children, disciplinary matters and questions concerning the adm nistration
of the school

30. Ms. ALINO (Cuba) said that fam |y doctors, nurses and social welfare
workers realized that health was a conplete state of well-being and not
sinmply a physical concept. There were fanily doctors in schools and pl ay
centres one of whose tasks was to check on cases of physical and psychol ogica
mal treatment, which they were then obliged to report to the authorities. An
early warning system had been established for reporting all acts of violence
comm tted against children, and in the past two years there had been a nunber
of events and neetings dealing with the maltreatment of children and involving
those concerned with their health care. All doctors in Cuba knew that they
were under an obligation to detect cases of violence against children and to
report them

31. Ms. DE PUZO (Cuba), referring to the question of the age of consent for
sexual activity, said that whether or not the activity constituted an offence
was not determined in terns of age. Sexual offences were treated as nore
grave if the child was younger, but the difference lay in the severity of the
sanctions inmposed. Cuba's penal |egislation contained a Iist of offences
agai nst chil dren.

32. Wth regard to the right of children to have recourse to authority, a
child could address a children's nmagistrate or a district court judge dealing
with juvenile issues. Children could not have recourse to the
Prosecutor-General's Ofice

33. O fences conmitted by children under the age of 16 were not regarded as
crinmes. Juvenile offenders between the ages of 16 and 18 benefited from
special treatnment: they were not inprisoned together with adults, and were
dealt with according to their age, being taught skills with the aim of
changing their attitude and behavi our and equi pping them for reintegration
into society.

34. In relation to the right of the child to rest and |eisure, child |abour
did not exist in Cuba, either by day or by night, and young persons just above
the m ni mum age for work had shorter working hours than adults. Learning and
wor k were conbi ned at certain stages in Cuban schools.

35. There was no corporal punishnment in Cuban schools, torture of children
did not take place.

36. Ms. FLOREZ PRI DA (Cuba) said that the Cuban del egation had taken note of
all the coments made by menbers of the Conmittee and woul d be pleased to
furnish any further information that m ght be required. The authorities in
Cuba were constantly analysing the situation with regard to the rights of the
child and were seeking ways of inproving it.

37. Ms. MBO said that the information provided appeared to indicate that
Cuba was one of the very few countries in the world where there was as yet no
probl em of sexually transnitted di sease anong minors. All young people in
Cuba who engaged in premarital sex would seemto be practising safe sex. |If



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 7

the nunber of abortions in Cuba had fallen and all couples had access to free
fam ly planning information, there was no reason for unwanted pregnanci es.
However, that problem being on the increase both regionally and globally, Cuba
shoul d monitor the situation closely. The Cuban authorities could usefully
share their experience with other countries that were finding it difficult to
convince their young people either to practise safe sex or to delay the

begi nning of their sexual activity.

38. In her view no satisfactory answer had been given to the Cormittee's
guestions concerning the status of the H V/ AIDS epidem c in Cuba and the
action being taken in that regard.

39. The Cuban del egation had referred to the famly planning information and
services that were nmade avail able to couples, but the Comrittee's concern was
whet her such information and services were furnished to children. Teenage
pregnanci es were on the increase, and there had al so been an increase in the

i ncidence of HI V/AIDS and sexually transmtted di seases in young children

40. The Convention could help the Cuban authorities to increase their

i nfluence and advocacy and to change existing and possibly outdated

| egi sl ation, for exanple by raising the m ninumage of marriage: girls of 14
and boys of 16 were still children biologically, physically, nmentally and
socially, and there was plenty of research and experience to show that child
marri ages were detrinmental to the devel opnment not only of the couple but also
of their children.

41. Ms. SARDENBERG wel coned the del egation's statenent concerning the Cuban
Governnment's position regarding the 1993 Hague Convention on the Protection of
Chi |l dren and Cooperation in respect to Inter-Country Adoption. She requested
confirmation that there was no discrimnation in Cuba between biol ogical and
adopted children in the context of article 2 of the Convention, and asked

whet her | egi sl ati on was under consideration that would facilitate efforts by
children to learn who their real parents were, in accordance with article 7.
In Cuba parents had an obligation to declare a birth within 72 hours of its
occurrence, but the Committee' s experience was that many countries had
problems with registration in rural areas. Did such problens exist in Cuba,
were there any penalties if the |law was not conplied with, and had there been
any canpai gns to encourage inmediate registration?

42. The coll ection of data by nonitoring was an area in which many

United Nations bodies, including UNI CEF and the Centre for Human Ri ghts,

provi ded techni cal assistance. She wi shed to know how the data collection
systemin Cuba worked, and whether there was any need for nodernization or for
techni cal assi stance.

43. M . RABAH asked whet her any non-governnental organizations had
participated in the preparation of the report (CRC/ C/8/ Add.30), and if so

whi ch organi zations and in what way. He would also |like to know how t he
speci al educational institutions for juvenile offenders functioned and what
was Cuba's experience in rehabilitating such of fenders. Wre there any

trai ning programmes for judges, mmgistrates, police officers, probation

of ficers, teachers and health workers who dealt with juvenile offenders? Ws



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 8

any care provided for Cuban children outside Cuba if they faced serious
probl ems? Were there any plans for chil dhood devel oprment in terms of
i mpl ement ati on of the Convention?

44, Ms. MXHUANE, referring to the question of the mininum age for
marriage, said that girls of 14 and boys of 16 m ght be physically mature, but
they were not enotionally mature, and many studies pointed to the health
probl ems that arose when girls of 14 had children, not to speak of the genera
probl ems of being sexually active at a young age. She now understood why
Cuba's Fam |y Code had so nmany rules and regul ations: it was because of the
young parent hood that was pronoted by the State. The quality of that

par ent hood appeared to be questionabl e, which was why the various Codes were
so insistent on what it nmeant to be a parent. Children 14 or 16 years of age
shoul d be preparing for careers and not for parenthood, which was a big
responsibility. Did childhood exist in Cuba, and if so when did young Cuban
girls and boys actually enjoy it?

45. The Conmittee had been infornmed that the behavioural problens of young
people in Cuba were being dealt with froma curative point of view, but it had
not been expl ai ned what those behavi oural problens really were. She asked
what was being done to pronote the psychol ogical well-being of children
outside the famly and the school at the community |evel, and what mechani snms
exi sted for |odging conplaints outside the State and governnent institutions
in respect of violations of the Convention

46. Ms. OUEDRAOXO i nqui red whet her adoptions were nonitored for quality of
treatnment, what recourse had a child if the chosen family did not suit him
and what procedures were followed in such a case. What neasures were taken to
ensure the social and psychol ogi cal equilibrium of abandoned or orphaned
children who were adopted? It would be useful to know what was done to ensure
the continuity of a child s ethnic, religious, cultural and |inguistic
heritage, in accordance with article 20.

47. It had been stated that the centres run by the United Nations Popul ation
Fund (UNFPA) in Cuba provided programres of sex education; the Governnent
shoul d i ndicate to what extent such programmes ensured both parental rights
and responsibilities. Further information should also be supplied on the
nature of neasures taken to ensure an equitable distribution of pharnmaceutica
products and nedical supplies in poor rural and urban areas. She would like
to know whether there were refugee children in Cuba, and if so, what neasures
were taken to assist them

48. M. FULCI said that, according to the report (para. 64), there were few
cases of abandoned children or children without a famly in Cuba; how many in
fact were there? It would be useful to know whether there existed a nationa
associ ation that worked in conjunction with UNI CEF and whet her Cuba's

col | aboration with UNI CEF was satisfactory.

49. The CHAI RPERSON, speaking in her personal capacity, inquired what

i npact, if any, the econonmic situation had had on the quality of education

and in particular whether it had adversely affected the status of the teaching
profession. It would be useful to know whether any studi es had been nade of



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 9

violence within the famly, and what was the reaction of the authorities to
the findings of such studies. Wat was the incidence of abuse anong chil dren?

50. Ms. FLOREZ PRIDA (Cuba) said that under the Cuban Constitution children
born in and out of wedl ock enjoyed equal rights. Furthernore, the Fam |y Code
provided that all children had the same rights, regardless of the civil status
of their parents. A law, adopted by the National Assenmbly of People s Power
in 1985, abolished distinctions between natural and legitimate children
established that particulars of both parents had to be regi stered whet her or
not they were married, affirned the legal rights of children vis-a-vis their
parents, and required parents to assume responsibility for their children

Ni nety-nine per cent of all births in Cuba took place in clinics, in each of
which there was a civil registry office, which made possible the orderly and
reliable collection of birth data. There were no |egal distinctions between
adoptive and ot her children.

51. Cuba had traditionally offered assistance to refugees. A case worthy of
note was that of the nunerous Nanmi bian children and adol escents who had cone
to Cuba, al one or acconpani ed, during the Nam bian struggle for independence,
and had studied in Cuban school s. Fol | owi ng i ndependence, they had gone
hone to Nam bia, but many had |later returned to Cuba to undertake higher
studies. Over the years many young people had cone to Cuba from African and
Latin Anerican countries to continue their studies while they waited for
conditions to normalize at honme. Cuba continued to wel cone refugees and the
United Nations Hi gh Commi ssioner for Refugees had a representative office

i n Havana.

52. Since 1960, Cuba’s relationship with UNI CEF had been excellent and had
devel oped. UNI CEF had provided consi derabl e assi stance for rural vaccination
and teacher training programmes, as well as disaster relief.

53. Ms. ALINO said that H V/AIDS did not constitute a significant health
probl emin Cuba sinply because few cases existed. All Cuban polyclinics had
groups of specialists in famly planning and all Cubans had access to famly
pl anning information. Cuba suffered, however, froma severe shortage of
contraceptives and the avail able supplies were reserved for couples at risk.
Unwant ed pregnancies therefore did occur, but were showing a downward trend.
Cuban fam |y planning policy sought to discourage early sexual activity, which
could be a danger to reproductive health. [If it was engaged in, the safest
possi bl e net hod shoul d be adopted, nanmely use of the condom A programme had
just been | aunched which mght nmake it possible better to satisfy the demand
for that item

54. There were two treatnent programres for AIDS patients, treatnment in a
sanatoriumor treatnent at home. Both were voluntary.

55. Replying to a question from M. MBA, she said that there were 400 cases
of diagnosed AIDS in the Cuban population at present; to date there had been a
total of 1,000 cases. There had been no significant increase in the incidence
of AIDS in the country. AIDS patients voluntarily chose to be treated in
sanatoriuns, in order to halt the spread of the disease, which had spread nuch
nore rapidly in other countries. Conparatively speaking, the incidence of

H V/AIDS in Cuba was insignificant. Systematic exam nations were carried out



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 10

and all pregnant women, for exanple, were tested for the virus. Sex education
had been decisive in curbing the spread of the disease. It was a concern of
the Mnistry of Education, the Mnistry of Health, the National Centre for Sex
Educati on and various NGOs. A university chair in sex education had been
establ i shed and the subject had been introduced into educational curricula.

56. The age of consent in Cuba was 18. Permni ssion was given for girls of 14
and boys of 16 to marry only under special circunstances. Marri age at those
ages was the exception, not the rule. Furthernore, the |aw was under

revi sion. Cuban policy discouraged both young marri ages and early

pregnancy as being detrinmental to both girls and boys, who had to take on
responsibilities for which they were not prepared. The Governnent placed
great enphasis on the consensual maternity and paternity progranme conducted
by the Mnistry of Health.

57. The Mnistry of Health had an outstandi ng data-collection system which
had been approved by a nunber of international organizations. All Cuban

clinics and hospitals had statistical centres, which nonitored illness and
nortality. Such statistics were collected weekly under the programme for
not her and child care, of which she was the director. In other areas of

concern, such as accidents, breastfeeding, and pregnancies at risk, Cuba had
monitoring sites and hospitals, which nmade quantitative and qualitative
assessnents.

58. In all schools, including the special institutions, enphasis was placed
on sports and the arts. School children were offered vacati ons at parks and
beaches free of charge

59. Cuba had 281 hospitals, of which 64 were in rural areas. There were

al so 210 maternity centres. Pregnant wonen living in renote rural areas
coul d nove, several weeks before term to a maternity centre |ocated near a
hospital. A programe had been devel oped to make nedici nes, medical supplies,
and health-care education readily available in rural and nountai nous areas.
Visitors from UNI CEF and other international organi zations had been inpressed
by the programme's results.

60. Ms. BERETERVI DE (Cuba), referring to Cuba's nechanisns for data
collection, said that there was a high degree of comunity participation
i ncludi ng use of a popul ation sanpling system UNICEF had utilized its
consi derabl e experience in Cuba in a joint pilot programre for training
regi onal specialists in the evaluation of collected data.

61. Referring to the question of the preparation of Cuba's report, she
re-enphasi zed that the docunment now bei ng eval uated had been prepared in 1995.
The interests of children had al ways been a matter of priority in Cuba, which
had | ong had progranmes specially designed for children that had been expanded
to cover women and famlies in general. Governnental bodies, NGOs and women's
organi zati ons had been involved in the initial preparatory work for the
drafting of the report. The final text had been established on the basis of
further reports produced by State institutions and NGOs that took account of
all relevant points of view, problens encountered and recomendati ons nade.
Prior to the subm ssion of the final report to the Commttee, its contents
were fully reviewed and further updated.



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 11

62. Wth reference to Cuba's sex education programmes, she said that there
was full coordination between the work of wonen's organi zati ons and the
actions undertaken by the Governnent in that area. Governmental

non- gover nnental and wonen's organi zations all played an inportant role in the
mechani sims i ntroduced for the subm ssion of conplaints. Al citizens could

| odge complaints on any nmatter relating to the famly unit, in particular in
relation to children.

63. The structures which were in place ensured good comruni cati on between
State bodi es and the non-governnental organizations in nmatters relating to
children. Concern had been expressed in the Conmittee regardi ng orphans, and
particularly regarding their upbringing and the question of respect for their

traditions. |In Cuba different specialized institutions existed for the care
of children who had been abandoned or whose parents were al coholics or in
prison. In such institutions the child benefited froma nore bal anced

enoti onal environnent than in the hone. However, taking a child away fromits
fam |y could create difficulties and wherever possible the famly hone was the
best place for a child to be. 1In the specialized institutions the authorities
tried to work together with parents, nmany of whom had been rehabilitated.

64. Parents were in sone cases not ready to take responsibility for their
children and placenent of the latter in a special institution was then
preferabl e, although their stay there should not be indefinite. Children were
sometines left in a famly environment with their grandparents or their aunt
and uncle. Single mothers, of whomthere were many, presented particul ar
problems. The State often helped themto find jobs or housing so that they
could again care for their children

65. The CHAI RPERSON t hanked the menbers of the Cuban del egation for the
answers they had furnished to the Conmttee's questions and said that further
i nformati on could be provided by the delegation in witing at a | ater date.

The neeting was suspended at 12.30 p.m and resuned at 12.40 p. m

66. The CHAI RPERSON invited the nenbers of the Committee to conmment on the
replies given by the del egati on of Cuba.

67. Ms. SARDENBERG expressed satisfaction with the openness of the Cuban
del egation's di alogue with the Conmttee, but felt that the Government's
report had been lacking in certain areas. Cuba was certainly to be comended
for its commtnent to the Convention, reflected in the country's Nationa
Action Programme for Children. |Its achievenents in social devel opnent,
especially during the past 32 years, in very difficult circunstances, were

al so to be commended. The econonic bl ockade i nmposed on the country had had a
very negative inpact on children and young peopl e.

68. There was an absence in the Cuban report of an overall vision of the
Convention, which was inmportant for its proper inplenmentation. There were

al so sone problens with the institutional structures designed for its

i npl enentation. There appeared, in Cuba, to be a | ack of bal ance between the
di fferent kinds of rights: economc, social, cultural, civil and political



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 12

69. A nunber of recommendations could be nmade. The progranmes for children
that had been introduced in Cuba needed to formpart of a national strategy
for promotion of the rights enunciated in the Convention. Secondly, a
conprehensi ve study should be nade of the problens relating to legislation in

that field. It was inportant also to coordinate the mechanisnms for the
i mpl enment ati on of the Convention, which should be viewed froma holistic
standpoint. Cooperation with United Nations agencies at all |evels should be

strengt hened and consideration should be given to ratification of other
i nternational human rights instrunments to which Cuba had not yet acceded.

70. Ms. KARP said that Cuba's achievenents had been considerable in the area
of soci al devel opnent, given the econom c constraints inposed on the country.
However, the national process of developnent in ternms of health and education
programes had begun prior to the drafting and ratification of the Convention
Following ratification, Cuba's policies, legislation and actions did not
appear to have focused on the Convention as a reference docunent and, in their
training, professionals dealing with children, such as judges, policenen and
soci al workers, did not appear to have been given an overall vision of the
Convention. Furthernore, the new anmendnents to | egislation did not appear to
focus on the instrunent's general principles, in particular the need to take

account of children's views. In matters of adoption and guardi anship, where a
child was over the age of 7, the judge concerned m ght, but was not obliged,
to hear the child s opinion. 1t was necessary that Cuba's |egislation should

express the full range of children's rights and it was to be hoped that the
di al ogue that had taken place in the Commttee would be publicized in Cuba so
that a better understanding of children's issues and of children's rights
under the Convention night be ensured.

71. M. KOLOSOV commended the Cuban del egation for its report and for the
written responses given to the Conmittee's questions. 1In his view, the

Commi ttee shoul d acknow edge the econonic difficulties Cuba had been
experienci ng and shoul d recogni ze the country's contribution to internationa
cooperation denonstrated, for exanple, by its care for 14,000 children from
Chernobyl. A m sunderstandi ng had perhaps arisen concerning the age of
majority in Cuba and the Declaration on Childhood and Youth. The Convention
on the Rights of the Child did not preclude the possibility of setting the age
of majority above 18 years, nor was setting it below 18 precluded. It was
clear fromthe report and the information furnished that in Cuba mgjority was
attained on a person's eighteenth birthday.

72. In Cuba, children generally received six years of free, conpul sory
education. However, there was no | egal guarantee thereafter of further
education, which was nmerely encouraged. It was therefore inportant to

i ncrease the nunber of years of conpul sory schooling. It was desirable also
that the ages for conpletion of compul sory education and adm ssion to

enpl oynment shoul d coincide. According to paragraph 112 of the report, the age
of consent to sexual intercourse in Cuba was 12 years. Cearly that age was
too | ow and should be reconsidered. Even if a 13- or 1l4-year-old gave consent
to such an act, that should be crimnalized. The Cuban del egati on had stated
that the | ow nunmber of suicides and the mnor difficulties of begging and
prostitution did not really constitute a problem However, for Governnents,
for the Committee and in relation to the inplenmentation of the Convention
every single child affected was a problem Worldw de trends indicated that



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 13

sui ci de among juveniles, drug addiction and child prostitution were on the
increase in many countries. It was necessary to study all such tendencies
gi ven the dangers of further increases. Cuba should, in his view, becone a
party to the Hague Convention on Protection of Children and Cooperation in
respect of Inter-Country Adoptions of 1993.

73. Referring to paragraphs 77 and 79 of the report, he observed that the
medi cal care statistics given related only to children under the age of 15.
Since all persons under the age of 18 were entitled to protection under the
Convention, as had been acknow edged by Cuba, he wi shed to know why the
statistics did not cover those between the ages of 15 and 187

74. M. FULCI agreed that Cuba should be commended for its report. He
believed that it was necessary for the country to concentrate nore on the
establ i shnment of general rules rather than dealing with exceptions, in the
interest of protection of its children. He had been interested to note, from
the information provided, that Cuban children had been affected only to a
limted extent by the terrible plague of sexual abuse.

75. Ms. FLOREZ PRI DA (Cuba) said that the Cuban del egation had sought to

gi ve all possible explanations in order to informthe Cormittee of the work
done in Cuba to help children and young people, including that undertaken
prior to the adoption of the Convention. Cuba attached enornous inportance to
work in favour of children and it felt a great sense of conmtnent in being
party to the Convention on the Rights of the Child. Cuban society was far
fromperfect, but efforts were continuously being made in order to inprove it.
Wor k undertaken prior to the Cuban revolution included the |egislation passed
in 1975, as well as the adoption of the Fanmily Code and other laws relating to
children and young people. On its return to Cuba the del egati on woul d ensure
that the report was nade available to the public, together with the answers
given to the Commttee's questions and the supplenmentary information that
woul d shortly be furnished to the Committee.

76. The Conmittee's recommendati ons woul d be studied in order to determne
in what ways Cuba's | egislation could be devel oped and how t he machi nery for
the care of children could be inproved. She w shed to enphasize that, even if
the actual number of cases was small, suicide, begging and prostitution did
constitute real problens for Cuba. It was inportant to try to find the
under | yi ng causes and appropriate solutions. New challenges were faced by the
Governnment in the areas of econonic devel opnent, expansion of the tourist

i ndustry and encouragenent of foreign investnent.

77. In the field of health, she wished to assure the Conmttee that the
problems of child nortality in rural and municipal areas were being carefully
anal ysed in order to establish the causes and find solutions. Cuba was under
obligation to translate all the requirenents and recomendati ons of the

Convention into reality. It was seeking to ensure that a bal ance existed
bet ween the various kinds of rights: civil, political, social, econonc and
cultural. Cuba was a firmbeliever in the independence and indivisibility of

all such rights.



CRC/ C/ SR. 376
page 14

78. The Cuban del egation had taken note of all the points raised by the
Committee and particul ars of ensuing action by the Governnent woul d be
comunicated to it. She expressed Cuba's appreciation of the opportunity to
take part in dialogue with the Conmittee.

79. The CHAI RPERSON said that the Committee took note of Cuba's conm tnent
to do what was best for its children. |Its efforts were the subject of
international interest and scrutiny and it was clear that the country had made
consi derabl e progress in the area of protection of children

The neeting rose at 1.15 p. m




